From: William Brearley <will@vistaplanning.co.uk>

Sent: 16 May 2025 07:19:11 UTC+01:00

To: "Robert.Hermitage" <Robert.Hermitage@horsham.gov.uk>
Cc: "Julie Gillion" <julie@vistaplanning.co.uk>

Subject: RE: DC/25/0116 Shelley Arms

Attachments: 1616-LS-V1-A.pdf

Morning Rob

Hope you’re well. Great to hear progress has been made on the water issue.

| have received the attached from our ecologist which | hope responds to your colleagues in
ecology. The drainage was submitted in March and | trust that has resolved these issues.

I've chased the arb consultant for his updated report and hope to have that with you
imminently.

Kind regards
Will

William Brearley MPlan MRTPI
Director

t. 07984 383334
e. will@vistaplanning.co.uk

VISTA
PLANNING

20A Market Street | Lichfield | Staffordshire | WS13 6LH

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or organisation to whom
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From: Robert.Hermitage <Robert.Hermitage@horsham.gov.uk>
Sent: 15 May 2025 13:12
To: Tapiwa Gavaza <tapiwa@quantum-ce.co.uk>; William Brearley <will@vistaplanning.co.uk>


mailto:will@vistaplanning.co.uk

Cc: Julie Gillion <julie@vistaplanning.co.uk>
Subject: RE: DC/25/0116 Shelley Arms

Hi both

Apologies- | meant to reply the other week but | never got around to it.

| have spoken with Adrian who has confirmed acceptance of the use of the Cenergist flow
regulators and that no Part G calculations are needed. | just need to wait to hear back from our
SNOWSs team regarding the offsite offsetting as they need to keep their records up to date to
ensure that these properties aren’t already being used for offsetting and to avoid double counting.
Once | have heard back | can proceed with consulting Natural England. | will act on this now.

In the meantime, there are a number of outstanding consultations that are on the website that
need addressing.

Many thanks,

Robert Hermitage

Principal Planning Officer

Telephone: 01403 215382

Email: Robert.Hermitage@horsham.gov.u HorSham
: District
0O X ink > | Council

Horsham District Council, Albery House, Springfield Road, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 2GB
Telephone: 01403 215100 (calls may be recorded) www.horsham.gov.uk Chief Executive: Jane Eaton

From: Tapiwa Gavaza <tapiwa@quantum-ce.co.uk>

Sent: 15 May 2025 12:58

To: William Brearley <will@vistaplanning.co.uk>

Cc: Robert.Hermitage <Robert.Hermitage@horsham.gov.uk>; Julie Gillion <julie@vistaplanning.co.uk>
Subject: Re: DC/25/0116 Shelley Arms

Hi William

| am writing to find out if all the matters pertaining to Water Neutrality have now been
resolved?

As we are yet to hear back from the Council since the email of the 11th of March 2025.

Kind regards
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The content of this email is confidential and intended for the recipient specified in message only. It is strictly forbidden to
share any part of this message with any third party, without a written consent of the sender. If you received this message

by mistake, please reply to this message and follow with its deletion, so that we can ensure such a mistake does not occur
in the future.

On Thu, 24 Apr 2025 at 16:36, Tapiwa Gavaza <tapiwa@quantum-ce.co.uk> wrote:
Dear Robert

| trust that you are well?

| am writing to find out if all the matters pertaining to Water Neutrality have now been

resolved? As we are yet to hear back from you since the email of the 11th of March
2025.

Kind regards

TAPIWA GAVAZA
Founding Director | BSc MSc MICE CEng CEnv
uuuntumcE Quantum Consulting Engineers Ltd

%uuuﬂtumEE B4 tapiwa@quantum-ce.co.uk

W +(44) 07512 665 225
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® 2 Falcon Gate,
Shire Park,
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Hertfordshire,
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The content of this email is confidential and intended for the recipient specified in message only. It is strictly forbidden
to share any part of this message with any third party, without a written consent of the sender. If you received this
message by mistake, please reply to this message and follow with its deletion, so that we can ensure such a mistake
does not occur in the future.

On Tue, 11 Mar 2025 at 13:50, William Brearley <will@vistaplanning.co.uk> wrote:
Afternoon Rob

Our consultant (on copy — Tapiwa Gavaza) has sent me the attached email exchange
which is included within his report. This states, amongst other things, that the flow regulator
(HL2024) was only installed on housing building before the 2010 Building Regs water
efficiency standards (Part G) came into effect. That reads alongside a table on page 20 of
the report which sets out the savings achieved.

Is that sufficient to respond to your query?

If not, please let me/Tapiwa know and we can get the information over to you.
Kind regards

Will

William Brearley MPlan MRTPI
Director

t. 07984 383334
e. will@vistaplanning.co.uk
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not take any action based upon it, nor must you copy, distribute or show it to anyone. If you have received it in error, please
notify this office at the address listed above.
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Computer viruses can be transmitted via email. The recipient should check this email and any attachments for the

presence of viruses. The company accepts no liability for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by this email. E-mail
transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free as information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed,
arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender therefore does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in

the contents of this message, which arise as a result of e-mail transmission.

From: Robert.Hermitage <Robert.Hermitage@horsham.gov.uk>
Sent: 18 February 2025 08:48

To: William Brearley <will@vistaplanning.co.uk>

Subject: DC/25/0116 Shelley Arms

Good morning William

| am just going over the revised water statement for this application. Everything more or
less seems to be in order. However, | was wondering if there are Part G calculators for
each of the offsetting properties to demonstrate the savings identified?

Please let me know.

Many thanks

Robert Hermitage

Principal Planning Officer

Telephone 01403 215382

Email: Robert.Hermitage@horsham.go
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Horsham District Council, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 1RL
Telephone: 01403 215100 (calls may be recorded) www.horsham.gov.uk Chief Executive: Jane Eaton

The Council will only accept service of documents by email if they are sent to legal@horsham.gov.uk. Any docu
ments sent to individual email addresses will not in any circumstances be accepted.
Please contact us in advance if your email, including any attachments, is going to exceed 30MB.

The Council will only accept service of documents by email if they are sent to
legal@horsham.gov.uk during our office opening hours. Any documents sent to individual email
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addresses will not in any circumstances be accepted. Communications received outside our office
opening hours will be regarded as being served on the next working day
Please contact us in advance if your email, including any attachments, is going to exceed 30MB.

Disclaimer

IMPORTANT NOTICE This e-mail might contain privileged and/or confidential information. If you have
received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender and delete the e-mail immediately; you may not use or
pass it to anyone else. Whilst every care has been taken to check this outgoing e-mail for viruses, it is your
responsibility to carry out checks upon receipt. Horsham District Council does not accept liability for any
damage caused. E-mail transmission cannot guarantee to be secure or error free. This e-mail does not create
any legal relations, contractual or otherwise. Any views or opinions expressed are personal to the author and
do not necessarily represent those of Horsham District Council. This Council does not accept liability for any
unauthorised/unlawful statement made by an employee. Information in this e mail may be subject to public
disclosure in accordance with the law. Horsham District Council cannot guarantee that it will not provide this
e mail to a third party. The Council reserves the right to monitor e-mails in accordance with the law. If this e-
mail message or any attachments are incomplete or unreadable, please telephone 01403 215100 or e-mail
contact@horsham.gov.uk. Any reference to "e-mail" in this disclaimer includes any attachments.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by
Mimecast Ltd.
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@ SEED

Seed Arboriculture Ltd 01625 460252
Suite F6.1b, First Floor 07498 208572
Adelphi Mill info@seed-arb.co.uk
Bollington seed-arb.co.uk
SK10 5JB

DATE

29t April 2025

REFERENCE

1616-LS-V1-A

ECOLOGY COMMENTS RESPONSE LETTER
Shelley Arms, Horsham

Overview

Seed Arboriculture Ltd were appointed by Stonegate Group (the Client) to undertake an updated Preliminary
Ecological Appraisal (PEA), at Shelley Arms, 16-18 Old Guildford Rd, Broadbridge Heath, Horsham RH12 3JU.

The aim of this letter statement is to provide further information and clarity to the reports in response to comments
received by Place Services, a traded service of Essex County Council, on 12t March 2025 as part of planning
application for the proposed Erection of 4No. dwellings and associated car parking, amenity space and
landscaping, along with re-configuration of pub car park (Ref: DC/25/0116).

Preliminary Ecological Appraisal
Consultee comment

“We are not satisfied that there is sufficient ecological information on protected species available for
determination of the application. This is because the ecological assessment (Preliminary Ecological
Appraisal Report (SEED Agricultural Consultancy, July 2023)), is out of date to support this application, in
line with CIEEM Guidancel and paragraph 6.2.1 of British Standard (BS) BS42020 ‘Biodiversity — Code of
practice for planning and development 2013°. This is because the initial site walkover was undertaken in
July 2023.

As a result, we recommend that the applicant’s ecologist provides an ecological addendum or an updated
ecological report to support this application, which should require an additional site visit and may require
updated desk study information. The ecologist will be required to provide appropriate justification, on:

- The validity of the initial report;

- Which, if any, of the protected species surveys need to be updated; and

- The appropriate scope, timing and methods for the update survey(s).”

The initial PEA was conducted by Genevieve Labram, Senior Ecologist. The survey was undertaken on the 18"
July 2023. The weather was clear (2/8 oktas), with no precipitation, wind speed and 20°c.

An updated study was conducted by Shona Bancroft, Graduate Ecologist on the 3™ April 2025. The weather
conditions were clear (1/8 oktas) and with no precipitation, temperature 17°c and wind speed 3.
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@ SEED

Habitats

During the initial PEA five different habitats were identified onsite consisting of developed land/sealed surface,
mixed scrub, modified grassland, individual trees and a non-native hedgerow.

The initial PEA found that the western portion of the site comprised mixed scrub. It was mainly dominated by
bramble (Rubus fruticosus agg.), with the addition of Lawson's cypress (Chamaecyparis lawsoniana), common ash
(Fraxinus excelsion, sycamore (Acer pseudoplatanus) and goat willow (Salix caprea). A parcel of modified
grassland was located to the south of the site and managed to a short sward height. Species included rough
meadow grass (Poa trivialis), common daisy (Bellis perennis), hawkbit (Leontodon sp.) and greater plantain
(Plantago major). A Deodar cedar (Cedrus deodara) was located to the south of the site and a common privet
(Ligustrum vulgare) hedge was located on the western aspect.

The updated PEA found the same habitats to be present and comprised of the same species. The mixed scrub
was found to be dominated by bramble scrub with the same mix of Lawsons cypress, common ash, goat willow
and sycamore identified within. The modified grassland was heavily managed through mowing and still consisted
of limited floristic diversity. The deodar cedar present on the southern aspect was given a ground level tree
assessment and found to have no bat potential. The non-native hedgerow consisting of California privet was also
present on site. Updated photos of the habitats can be found in Appendix 1.

Species

As the habitats on site were found to be in the same condition as defined in the original PEA, it was also
determined that the site still held limited value for notable flora and fauna species.

No notable flora was observed during either of the surveys which took place during an optimal survey period for
flora identification. Based on the limited floristic diversity and no notable species observed, notable flora is
considered absent from site.

The scrub is anticipated to be of some value for invertebrate species. However, it is dominated by bramble,
providing a monoculture for flowering plants for food resources. Overall, notable invertebrates may utilise the site
for foraging but are not thought to utilise the site in significant numbers.

The site is separated by residential housing and considered isolated from suitable habitats within the direct area,
with no commuting feature between the site and notable habitats such as ponds. This limits the likelihood
protected species utilising the site such as great crested newts ( 7riturus cristatus). In addition, most of the site is
considered unsuitable for protected species in their terrestrial phase (i.e. developed land; sealed surface).

The site provides limited value for reptiles, given most of the site comprised developed land; sealed surface which
lacks the structure and habitat quality to support the species group although it is noted this creates basking
opportunities. The scrub may be of some value for the species however as the site is isolated from habitats that
may support local populations, they are not anticipated to utilise this habitat. Overall, reptiles are not anticipated
to utilise the site.

The site provides limited value for nesting birds, with the scrub providing some foraging and nesting value. It is
anticipated notable bird species associated with residential may be present within the site, but the site is not
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@ SEED

considered to be of significant value due to the lack of features. Ground nesting birds are not anticipated to be
on site despite the presence of dense scrub, due to being located within a residential area and the site’s primary
use as a car park which causes significant disruption.

One tree is located to the south of site, this was assessed for bat roosting potential during both PEAs and neither
found the tree to have suitability to support PRFs for roosting bats. As such, the site does not have the suitability
to support roosting bats. The habitats on site are anticipated to provide value for foraging bats due to comprising
dense scrub which will attract invertebrate prey. However, the site is isolated and not directly connected to
habitats of greater value, and limiting the opportunities for local bat populations.

No evidence of badger was found on site over either of the PEAs however, given the habitats present within the
site, including scrub, it is anticipated that other terrestrial mammals such as hedgehog could be present within
the site

No non-native invasive species were observed during the surveys onsite. They are considered absent from the
site.

Mitigation Recommendations

As the site was found to be in the same condition as it was when first surveyed in July 2023, the same mitigation
recommendations apply to any works that will take place. Specifically, reasonable avoidance measures for the
following protected species:

Amphibian

Common amphibians such as common toad (Bufo bufo) and common frog (Rana temporaria) may be
present nearby to the site, therefore, they will be subject to the PWM’S detailed below.

Great crested newts are not anticipated to be present on site given its current condition, however, if works
are anticipated during the winter months, the following PWMs will be followed, and should any GCN be
found, works will cease and a suitable license sought prior to recommencement.

The following PWM'’s are suggested to be followed when clearing the site for amphibians.

e All site contractors are to be inducted through a Toolbox Talk hosted by a suitably qualified ecologist on
the presence of amphibians and reptiles such as great crested newts, slow worms and common toads
and any legal protection. All contractors are to sign the Toolbox Talk and agree to the proposed RAMs.

e A designated working area will be maintained to minimise total working area, which will be marked out
by the ecologist (where necessary).

e Materials stored in contact with the floor should be carefully lifted to check for any amphibians or reptiles
and if found they should be moved away from the work site prior to continuation, the materials will then
be fully removed to leave exposed ground.

e Any vegetation on site to be cleared should first be strimmed to approximately 15 cm and left overnight,
allowing any animals the chance to naturally disperse from site. A fingertip search of any vegetated areas
should then be undertaken to check for the presence of amphibians or reptiles.

e Once the ecologist has declared all areas of potential for amphibians and reptiles have been checked,
the proposed works can continue unsupervised.
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Storage of materials is to be on pallets i.e. raised off the ground and on areas of hard standing or tarmac.
No materials to be stored on vegetation.

All working areas are to be maintained as bare ground or hardstanding throughout the construction
phase.

All open pits and pipes are to be covered during the night, with a check for presence of amphibians and
reptiles conducted prior to covering.

If excavations are exposed and/or created, a slope will be positioned within the excavation to allow
amphibians and mammals to escape should they fall in.

Under no circumstances should site contractors attempt to handle great crested newt.

Ecologist to undertake a site visit upon completion of works to confirm that the works have been
undertaken using the above risk avoidance measures and that habitats have been restored.

Reptiles

Reptiles may be present onsite, however only low numbers are anticipated based on the location, habitat quality
and site size. Due to the size of the site and limited habitats of suitability, it is deemed appropriate that Reasonable
Avoidance Measures (RAMs) are to be followed during vegetation clearance, to minimise potential impacts on
the species:

An experienced Ecological Clerk of Works (ECoW) shall be appointed to ensure RAM'’s are enforced.

A copy of this method statement must be kept on site (we suggest having a laminated copy in the site
office/ compound).

A walkover of the area should be undertaken by the ECoW to determine any change in status of the
habitats/structures on site prior to the initiation of any works.

A toolbox talk by the appointed ECoW will be given to the site manager and all contractors working on
site with respect to the surrounding habitats and potential for protected/notable species. A copy of
species factsheets relating to reptiles and breeding birds will be provided for display within the site office.
Suitable vegetation is to be strimmed under ECoW to approximately 15cm in a northern to southern
direction. It is to be checked by the ECoW following strimming to identify individuals. If discovered, they
will be removed from the working area and covered. Once the areas are deemed reptile free, they are to
be strimmed to ground level and maintained at this length for the remaining works.

Any excavations will be backfilled on the same day as excavation or checked by the ECoW immediately
prior to backfilling. This also considers avoiding temporary water bodies which may be attractive to
amphibians. If it is not possible to backfill on the same day, a ramp, will be provided in all excavations or
alternatively, all excavations should be well-covered with plywood.

No piles of loose construction materials are to be created during works — all material will be kept on
hardstanding, stored on pallets, removed immediately from the site or checked by an ECoW prior to being
removed.

In the event reptiles are discovered, works will halt immediately and the ECoW will be contacted for
advice. Contractors are not to handle reptiles unless informed to do so by the ECoW.

The precautionary destructive search work will be undertaken during the summer at a time of year when reptiles
are active. The ecologist will be present during the strimming works. Any reptiles found during the destructive
search will be relocated to the adjacent pub, which is under the client ownership.

During the construction period, the development zone will be maintained clear of vegetation in order to remove
the likelihood of any reptiles re-colonising the site.
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Breeding Birds

Any vegetation removal should be undertaken outside of the breeding bird season (March to August, inclusive).
If this is not possible, a suitably qualified ecologist should undertake a nesting bird check no more than 48 hours
prior to removal. If nesting activity is observed, the nest(s) should be left in situ until the young have fledged. A
suitable buffer will be maintained and determined by the ecologist.

To compensate for the loss of any potential habitats, integrated bird boxes could be used to minimise risk of
impacting the local bird population

Bats

Slow-flying species such as brown long-eared, which are known to be in the local area, are sensitive to lighting
and may be impacted by the proposed development, should no mitigation for lighting be considered.

An External Lighting Scheme had not been produced on the writing of this report. As such, the following
recommendations are to be considered within the scheme during its condition, to minimise impacts of
lighting. The recommendations are as follows:

Keep site lighting to minimum levels.

Luminaries should lack UV elements and preferably LED lighting with a warm white light should be used
over cool white light (ideally <2700Kelvin).

Lighting should feature peak wavelengths greater than 550nm.

Light placement should be downward facing to prevent excess horizontal or vertical light spill.

The use of integrated fittings such as cowls, shields, louvres and hoods, that effectively contain light spill
from unintended areas.

Avoid illuminating habitats of value (i.e. pond, hedgerows and trees).

Use of timed security lights should be set on motion-sensors and using short, 1-minute timers, to minimise
light use.

Column heights of lighting can be considered to minimise light spill.

Badgers

The following Precautionary Working Methods will be adhered to during the construction phase to ensure that
no badgers are impacted by the proposed development:

Updated badger walkover to be completed immediately prior to the construction phase to confirm
presence or absence of badgers.

All site operatives will be inducted to the potential presence of the species and the species legal
protection.

All site operatives will be inducted as to identifying potential badger setts and should be vigilant if they
suspect they locate a new sett during works and inform the site manager immediately. A minimum 20m
buffer will be maintained from the potential sett until an ecologist has been to site.

All excavations will be battened at a 45-degree angle or ramps to be positioned to allow escape should
animals become trapped.
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e All site machinery and materials will be appropriately stored to avoid harm to the species, notably
between July and November each year when extra care is needed to avoid potential impacts on pregnant
females.

Hedgehogs
During habitat management, any areas of dense vegetation should first be carefully hand searched to check for
the species. If identified during management, should be relocated carefully by hand to a location away from the
working area. If any injured either species are located, they should be taken to a local vet
Full details of these mitigation measures can be found in the initial PEA (REF 1616-PEA-V1-A).
Enhancement Opportunities
The following enhancement opportunities, mentioned in the initial PEA, are recommended for the site:
. Bat and bird boxes could be placed on the new buildings / retained trees. A plan to show the locations

of these boxes and the specifications should be produced by a suitably qualified ecologist once the
layout is finalised.

. Planting of linear features such as hedgerows and trees between garden plots where possible, to add
commuting features withing the site.
. The inclusion of ‘hedgehog highways’ to facilitate movement across the site. This includes holes of

13 x 13cm at the bases of fence panels, leaving a sufficient gap beneath gates and/or leaving brick
spaces at the bases of brick walls.

No further surveys are recommended for the site.
Conclusion

The updated PEA conducted on the 3rd of April 2025 found the findings of the initial PEA, conducted on 18th of
July 2023, to be valid and still relevant to the site in its current condition. This ecological addendum has confirmed
the validity of the initial report, clarified that no protected species surveys need to take place, and therefore do
not need to be updated, and has recommended scope, timings and methods for the recommended mitigation on
site.

Yours sincerely,
For and on behalf of SEED Arboriculture Ltd,

Michael Boucher
Graduate Ecologist
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Appendix 1 — Site Photographs

Habtat

Dense Scrub

Photograph

Developed land, sealed
surface

Registered Office: Suite F6.1b, First Floor, Adelphi Mill, Bollington, SK10 5JB

Company No: 12170008

SEED-ARB.CO.UK

= |nstitute of
: ./

Chartered Foresters

Arboricultural
ASSOCIATION

Professional Member





SEED

Modified grassland

Individual Tree

Non-native hedgerow

Registered Office: Suite F6.1b, First Floor, Adelphi Mill, Bollington, SK10 5JB g‘;
Company No: 12170008 o e
: == |nstitute of Arboricultural
ASSOCIATION
Chartered Foresters rofessional Member

SEED-ARB.CO.UK





		Photograph

		Habtat



